
FAIRFIELD CITY COUNCIL  
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

FAIRFIELD MUNICIPAL BUILDING 
5350 PLEASANT AVENUE 

FAIRFIELD, OHIO  45014 
 

Tuesday, July 12, 2016       7:00 PM 
 
 
MAYOR………………………………….STEVE MILLER    COUNCILMEMBER AT-LARGE…CHAD OBERSON 
COUNCILMEMBER 1ST WARD……….BOB MYRON    COUNCILMEMBER AT-LARGE…MIKE SNYDER 
COUNCILMEMBER 2ND WARD………CRAIG W. KELLER    COUNCILMEMBER AT-LARGE…BILL WOESTE 
COUNCILMEMBER 3RD WARD………DEBBIE PENNINGTON   CITY MANAGER………………….MARK WENDLING 
COUNCILMEMBER 4TH WARD………TIM ABBOTT    CLERK OF COUNCIL…………….ALISHA WILSON 

LAW DIRECTOR………………….JOHN H. CLEMMONS 
 
Guidelines for Citizen Comments: Thank you for your interest and participation in city government.  Fairfield City Council’s Guidelines for 
Citizen Comments describe the rules for addressing City Council. The guidelines are posted in the Council Chambers. 
 
ADA Notice:  The City of Fairfield is pleased to provide accommodations to disabled individuals or groups and encourage full participation in 
city government.  Should special accommodations be required, please contact the Clerk of Council at 867-5383 at least 48 hours in advance of the 
meeting. 

 
1. Call to Order 
 
2. Prayer/Pledge of Allegiance 
 
3. Roll Call 
 
4. Agenda Modifications 
 
5. Executive Session Requests 
 
6. Special Presentations and Citizen Comments 
 

a) Oath of Office – Joseph Mollmann, Police Officer 
b) Proclamation – Todd Kristoff, Ohio Army National Guard Retirement 
c) Chamber of Commerce Update 

 
7. Public Hearing(s) 

 
a) 2017 Tax Budget 

 
8. Mayor/Council Reports 
 
9. Approval of Minutes 
 

a) Regular Meeting Minutes of June 13, 2016 
 
10. OLD BUSINESS  
 
11. NEW BUSINESS 
 

(A) COMMUNITY & PUBLIC RELATIONS COMMITTEE 
Bob Myron, Chairman; Bill Woeste, Vice Chairman; Debbie Pennington, Member 
 
(1) Ordinance providing for the submission to the electors of the City of Fairfield, Ohio of a proposed 

amendment to the Charter of said city at a special election to be held and conducted on Tuesday, November 
8, 2016 to amend Section 8.03 of the Charter to abolish the Board of Building Appeals and provide that the 
powers, duties and functions of the former Board of Building Appeals be performed in all respects by the 
Board of Zoning Appeals. 

 
• Motion – Read by Title Only (Optional) 
• Ordinance – First Reading 

 
 



Page 2  
Agenda 

Regular Meeting 
July 12, 2016 

 
 

(B) PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMITTEE 
Mike Snyder, Chairman; Chad Oberson, Vice Chairman; Bob Myron, Member 
 
(1) Ordinance to authorize the City Manager to enter into a contract with Horizon Brothers Painting for the 

cleaning, repairing and painting of the Mack Road Water Storage Tower. 
 

• Motion – Read by Title Only (Optional) 
• Ordinance – First Reading 
• Motion – Suspend Second and Third Readings 
• Motion – Adoption 

 
(C) DEVELOPMENT SERVICES COMMITTEE 

Bill Woeste, Chairman; Bob Myron, Vice Chairman; Mike Snyder, Member 
 

(1) Ordinance accepting five (5) separate sections of existing water main as public improvements to be 
maintained by the City of Fairfield. 

 
• Motion – Read by Title Only (Optional) 
• Ordinance – First Reading 

 
(D) FINANCE & BUDGET COMMITTEE 

Tim Abbott, Chairman; Debbie Pennington, Vice Chairman; Craig Keller, Member 
 

(1) Resolution adopting the tax budget of the City of Fairfield, Ohio, for the fiscal year beginning January 1, 
2017 and submitting the same to the Butler County Auditor and declaring an emergency. 
 

• Motion – Read by Title Only (Optional) 
• Resolution – First Reading 
• Motion – Suspend Second and Third Readings 
• Motion – Adoption 

 
(2) Resolution declaring the necessity of an additional levy in excess of the ten-mill limitation and requesting 
the County Auditor to certify the total current tax valuation of the City of Fairfield and the dollar amount of 
revenue that would be generated by a specified number of mills and declaring an emergency. 
 

• Motion – Read by Title Only (Optional) 
• Resolution – First Reading 
• Motion – Suspend Second and Third Readings 
• Motion – Adoption 

 
(3) Ordinance to amend Ordinance No. 107-15 entitled “An Ordinance to make estimated appropriations for 

the expenses and other expenditures of the City of Fairfield, Ohio, during a period beginning January 1, 
2016, and ending December 31, 2016.” 

 
*Contractual Appropriations – $374,000 for Mack Road Water Storage Tower project.  

 
• Motion – Read by Title Only (Optional) 
• Ordinance – First Reading 
• Motion – Suspend Second and Third Readings 
• Motion – Adoption 

 
(4) Ordinance to amend Ordinance No. 107-15 entitled “An Ordinance to make estimated appropriations for 

the expenses and other expenditures of the City of Fairfield, Ohio, during a period beginning January 1, 
2016, and ending December 31, 2016.” 

 
 



Page 3  
Agenda 

Regular Meeting 
July 12, 2016 

 
*Non-Contractual Appropriations – $32,000 for purchase of air release valves for Wastewater Division 
Broadview Relief Sewer Lift Station Force Mains; $25,000 for routine cleaning of Wastewater Division’s 
Anaerobic Digester #2; $32,000 for Joe Nuxhall Way Sanitary Sewer Force Main Installation Project; 
$21,000 for Cisco network equipment support agreement; $25,994 for project administration and 
inspection services for Mack Road Water Storage Tower project; $8,350 for improvements to Village 
Green Park/Town Center Campus; $7,369 for purchase of Exmark 60” Turf Tracer walk-behind mower. 

 
• Motion – Read by Title Only (Optional) 
• Ordinance – First Reading 
• Motion – Suspend Second and Third Readings 
• Motion – Adoption 

 
12. Meeting Schedule 

 
Monday, July 25 Regular Meeting, 7:00 p.m. 
Monday, August 8 Council-Manager Briefing, 6:00 p.m.; Regular Meeting, 7:00 p.m. 
Monday, September 12 Council-Manager Briefing, 6:00 p.m.; Regular Meeting, 7:00 p.m. 

 
13. Executive Session of Council (if needed) 

 
14. Adjournment 



 1 

 

 
 

Public Hearing Notice 
 
 
Fairfield City Council 
July 1, 2016 
 

 
 

CITY OF FAIRFIELD, OHIO 
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

2017 TAX BUDGET 
 
Two copies of the 2017 Tax Budget as to be tentatively adopted for the City of Fairfield of Butler County, Ohio, 
are on file in the office of the Clerk of Council of the City of Fairfield.  These copies are for public inspection, 
and a Public Hearing on said Tax Budget will be held at the Fairfield Municipal Building, 5350 Pleasant 
Avenue, Fairfield, Ohio, on Tuesday, July 12, 2016 at 7:00 p.m. 
 
 
 

Alisha Wilson 
Clerk of Council 

 
 

For insertion in the Journal News on July 1, 2016. 
 



MINUTES  
REGULAR MEETING OF COUNCIL  

JUNE 13, 2016  
 
Call to Order  
Mayor Steve Miller called the Regular Meeting of Council to order at 7:00 PM at the Fairfield Municipal 
Building, 5350 Pleasant Avenue. 
 
Prayer/Pledge of Allegiance  
Councilmember Oberson led in prayer and the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Roll Call  
Clerk Wilson called the roll of Council. Present members were Councilmember Bob Myron, 
Councilmember Craig Keller, Councilmember Debbie Pennington, Councilmember Tim Abbott, 
Councilmember Chad Oberson, Councilmember Mike Snyder, and Councilmember Bill Woeste. 
 
Agenda Modifications  
No agenda modifications. 
 
Executive Session Requests  
No Executive Session requests. 
 
Special Presentations and Citizen Comments  
Chamber of Commerce Update 
Kert Radel, President of the Fairfield Chamber of Commerce, thanked Mayor and Council for their 
attendance at several ribbon cuttings in May and early June. He also mentioned one at Edward Jones on 
Tuesday, June 14 at noon. 
 
Public Hearing(s)  
No public hearings. 
 
Mayor/Council Reports  
Councilmember Woeste read a thank-you letter to Mayor Miller and his wife for hosting the Fairfield 
Food Pantry fundraiser at their home. He commented that it was a wonderful event and they 
appreciated his help. 
 
Councilmember Snyder reported that the fire hydrant flushing is complete and the 2015 water quality 
report is available online or at the Water Treatment Plant. 
 
Councilmember Oberson reported that the sidewalk program is completed and Wessel Drive is being re-
paved now and will be finished by July 3. 
 
Councilmember Abbott reported that income tax collections are up approximately 9% and the annual 
audit is almost complete. 
 
Councilmember Pennington announced the Harbin Park input session, upcoming movies at the pool and 
Village Green, the Hamilton-Fairfield Symphony Orchestra concert at Village Green, the annual Red, 

http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=308&meta_id=56512
http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=308&meta_id=56514


White & Kaboom event on July 3, and the Village Green Farmers Market every Wednesday evenings. She 
also noted that the Historical Society newsletter is available. 
 
 
Approval of Minutes  
Regular Meeting Minutes of May 23, 2016 

• The Regular Meeting Minutes of May 23, 2016 were approved as written and submitted. 
 

OLD BUSINESS 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 

PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE 
Craig Keller, Chairman; Tim Abbott, Vice Chairman; Chad Oberson, Member 

 
Simple Motion: Motion to not request a hearing regarding a liquor permit application in the name of 
Mihir & Helly, Inc. dba Dixie Food Mart, 4825 Dixie Highway, Fairfield, OH 45014. (Permit Classes: C1, C2 
& D6)  
 
Councilmember Keller, seconded by Councilmember Pennington, moved to not request a hearing 
regarding a liquor permit application in the name of Mihir & Helly, Inc. dba Dixie Food Mart. Motion 
carried 7-0. SIMPLE MOTION NO. 12-16. APPROVED 7-0. 
 

PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMITTEE 
Mike Snyder, Chairman; Chad Oberson, Vice Chairman; Bob Myron, Member 

 
Ordinance to authorize the City Manager to enter into a contract with GRW Engineers, Inc. for 
engineering support services for water main replacement on Route 4.  
 
Councilmember Mike Snyder, seconded by Councilmember Bill Woeste moved to read the following 
ordinance by title only. Motion Carried 7-0. 
 
Background: City Manager Wendling recommended a contract for engineering support services for 
water main replacement on Route 4. Legislative Action: Councilmember Snyder presented the first 
reading of this ordinance. 
 
Councilmember Mike Snyder, seconded by Councilmember Bill Woeste moved to suspend the rules 
requiring three (3) readings of this ordinance. Motion Carried 7-0. Councilmember Mike Snyder, 
seconded by Councilmember Craig Keller moved to adopt. Motion Carried 7-0. ORDINANCE NO. 55-16. 
APPROVED 7-0. 
 

PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE 
Chad Oberson, Chairman; Mike Snyder, Vice Chairman; Bill Woeste, Member 

 
Ordinance to authorize the City Manager to enter into a contract with Northwest Consultants, Inc. for 
design for North Gilmore Road improvements and declaring an emergency.  

http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=308&meta_id=56520
http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=308&meta_id=56520
http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=308&meta_id=56520
http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=308&meta_id=56522
http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=308&meta_id=56522
http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=308&meta_id=56528
http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=308&meta_id=56528


 
 
Councilmember Chad Oberson, seconded by Councilmember Bill Woeste moved to read the following 
ordinance by title only. Motion Carried 7-0. 
 
Background: City Manager Wendling recommended a contract for design of North Gilmore Road 
improvements. Legislative Action: Councilmember Oberson presented the first reading of this 
ordinance. 
 
Councilmember Chad Oberson, seconded by Councilmember Mike Snyder moved to suspend the rules 
requiring three (3) readings of this ordinance. Motion Carried 7-0. Councilmember Chad Oberson, 
seconded by Councilmember Debbie Pennington moved to adopt. Motion Carried 7-0. ORDINANCE NO. 
56-16. APPROVED 7-0. 
 

PARKS, RECREATION AND ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE 
Debbie Pennington, Chairman; Craig Keller, Vice Chairman; Tim Abbott, Member 

 
Ordinance to authorize the City Manager to execute a lease agreement with Lake Erie Golf Cars, E-Z-GO 
Division of Textron, Inc. for the lease of golf carts at the Fairfield Greens Golf Courses through PNC 
Equipment Finance, LLC and declaring an emergency.  
 
Councilmember Debbie Pennington, seconded by Councilmember Tim Abbott moved to read the 
following ordinance by title only. Motion Carried 7-0. 
 
Background: City Manager Wendling recommended a lease agreement for golf carts at the Fairfield 
Greens Golf Courses. This is a revenue producer for the city. Legislative Action: Councilmember 
Pennington presented the first reading of this ordinance. 
 
Councilmember Debbie Pennington, seconded by Councilmember Bob Myron moved to suspend the 
rules requiring three (3) readings of this ordinance. Motion Carried 7-0. Councilmember Debbie 
Pennington, seconded by Councilmember Mike Snyder moved to adopt. Motion Carried 7-0. 
ORDINANCE NO. 57-16. APPROVED 7-0. 
 

FINANCE & BUDGET COMMITTEE 
Tim Abbott, Chairman; Debbie Pennington, Vice Chairman; Craig Keller, Member 

 
Councilmember Tim Abbott, seconded by Councilmember Debbie Pennington moved to read the 
following three (3) ordinances by title only. Motion Carried 7-0. 
 
Ordinance to authorize an amended employment agreement for the City Manager.  
 
Background: City Manager Wendling recommended an amended employment agreement with the City 
Manager, based on the annual review with Council. The agreement allows for a 3.5% pay increase. 
Legislative Action: Councilmember Abbott presented the first reading of this ordinance. 
 
 

http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=308&meta_id=56534
http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=308&meta_id=56534
http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=308&meta_id=56534
http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=308&meta_id=56540


Councilmember Tim Abbott, seconded by Councilmember Craig Keller moved to suspend the rules 
requiring three (3) readings of this ordinance. Motion Carried 7-0. Councilmember Tim Abbott, 
seconded by Councilmember Mike Snyder moved to adopt. Motion Carried 7-0. ORDINANCE NO. 58-16. 
APPROVED 7-0. 
 
Ordinance to amend Ordinance No. 107-15 entitled “An Ordinance to make estimated appropriations 
for the expenses and other expenditures of the City of Fairfield, Ohio, during a period beginning January 
1, 2016, and ending December 31, 2016.”  
 
Background: City Manager Wendling recommended the following contractual appropriations - 
$118,250.00 for engineering support services for water main replacement on Route 4; $131,188.00 for 
design for North Gilmore Road improvements. Legislative Action: Councilmember Abbott presented the 
first reading of this ordinance. 
 
Councilmember Tim Abbott, seconded by Councilmember Bob Myron moved to suspend the rules 
requiring three (3) readings of this ordinance. Motion Carried 7-0. Councilmember Tim Abbott, 
seconded by Councilmember Chad Oberson moved to adopt. Motion Carried 7-0. ORDINANCE NO. 59-
16. APPROVED 7-0. 
 
Ordinance to amend Ordinance No. 107-15 entitled “An Ordinance to make estimated appropriations 
for the expenses and other expenditures of the City of Fairfield, Ohio, during a period beginning January 
1, 2016, and ending December 31, 2016.”  
 
Background: City Manager Wendling recommended the following non-contractual appropriations - 
$62,739 for purchase and outfitting of a Ford F-350 DRW 4x4 for Street Division (multiple vendors); 
$7,000 for upgrade and addition to the TimeClock system; $19,134 for the pavement marking 
application for Village Green Crosswalks; $35,050 for the improvements to Miami Chapel Cemetery; 
$13,000 for water supply upgrades to the Fairfield Greens Golf maintenance facility; $45,508 for 
purchase and outfitting of a Ford SUV for Fire Department (multiple vendors). Legislative Action: 
Councilmember Abbott presented the first reading of this ordinance. 
 
Councilmember Tim Abbott, seconded by Councilmember Debbie Pennington moved to suspend the 
rules requiring three (3) readings of this ordinance. Motion Carried 7-0. Councilmember Tim Abbott, 
seconded by Councilmember Chad Oberson moved to adopt. Motion Carried 7-0. ORDINANCE NO. 60-
16. APPROVED 7-0. 
 
Meeting Schedule  
Clerk Wilson read the following meeting schedule: 
 

• Monday, July 11 Council-Manager Briefing, 6:00 p.m.; Regular Meeting, 7:00 p.m.  
• Monday, August 8 Council-Manager Briefing, 6:00 p.m.; Regular Meeting, 7:00 p.m.  
• Monday, September 12 Council-Manager Briefing, 6:00 p.m.; Regular Meeting, 7:00 p.m.  

 
Executive Session of Council (if needed)  
No Executive Session. 
 
 

http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=308&meta_id=56545
http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=308&meta_id=56545
http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=308&meta_id=56545
http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=308&meta_id=56550
http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=308&meta_id=56550
http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=308&meta_id=56550
http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=308&meta_id=56555


Adjournment  
The Regular Meeting adjourned at 7:25 PM. 
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
_____________________________ 
Clerk of Council  
 
 
_____________________________ 
Mayor's Approval 
Date Approved_________________ 




























































































































	Regular Agenda for July 12, 2016
	2017 Tax Budget Hearing Notice
	Regular Meeting Minutes June 13, 2016
	New Business
	C&PR - Charter Amendment
	PUC - Mack Road Water Storage Tower project
	DSC - Accept existing water main as public improvement
	F&BC - 2017 Tax Budget
	F&BC - Necessity of Levy (Fire/EMS)
	F&BC - Contractual Appropriations
	F&BC - Non-Contractual Appropriations


